City of Crystal Lake Economic Development Committee
December 14, 2010 — 7:30 a.m.
Municipal Complex — City Council Chambers Conferene Room

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 7:30 a.m.

Welcome guests — introductions
Mr. Haleblian welcomed the guests to the meetirth bwe hotel managers and those who were inter@sted
a vacant positions on the Committee.

Roll Call/Attendance
Members Affrunti, Feddersen, Fowler, and Haleblsare present. Mr. Riley was absent.

Michelle Rentzsch, Director of Planning and Ecoro®éevelopment, and James Richter II, Assistant
Director of Economic Development, were present fetaif. Also in attendance were Keith Saidler with
JMS Consultants; Jeff DeHaan; Steve Dalzell witleBla& Co.; Penny Hughes with Hughes Signs;
Andrew Hymes with Millennium Electronics; Michaebtten with Comfort Inn; Richard Harms with
Countryside Nursery; Dorene Palmer and Becke Conngth Country Inn and Suites; Michael Ross with
Sweet Pea Cakes; and Cort Carlson with McHenry GoQanvention and Visitors Bureau.

Approve Minutes of the November 30, 2010 EDC Meetqs
Mr. Fowler moved to approve the November 30, 20DCHEninutes as presented. Ms Feddersen seconded
the motion. On roll call, all members present daage. Motion passed.

Tourism Discussion

Mr. Richter said the Committee requested that weanepresentatives from the hotels with Crystaké. to
attend this meeting and discuss the McHenry Cowuidijors Bureau (MCVB). He said that MCVB has
requested a recommendation of support from the ED@eir request for hotel tax funding.

Mr. Cotton, manager for the Comfort Inn, thankeel @ommittee for inviting them to this meeting. s
been in the hotel business for more than 30 y@ararious states and can’t understand why the @ity
Crystal Lake doesn’t support tourism through the\WBC Mr. Cotten added that the endeavors that are
supported by the hotel tax funds divided by theg Cibuncil are wonderful things but the hotels amarism
needs their support as well. He said his hot8¥Visooms and if the occupancy is increased byljsthat
this results in an increase to the local economg\ugy $40,000. Mr. Cotten said the hotels pron@restal
Lake with every advertising dollar they spend dmelytdon’t see any return or support from the City.

Mr. Haleblian asked to define “support.” Mr. Caiteaid he understands the downtown area needsrsuppo
from the City. He added that the | Shop programstd benefit hotels. Families come to town foorsg
tournaments. If people go to Chicago why would/tstep at Crystal Lake? He has spoken to tourism
companies — bus tours — to encourage them to s he MCVB doesn’t promote individual hotels bu
the area in general.

Ms. Feddersen asked what the investment would ddstCotten said it depends on the City’'s fundifgs
the number of people staying at the hotels in @hlsitke goes up so does the hotel tax dollars dsas¢he
taxes that are spent on items purchased in the Eigysaid the average business traveler spends&t5s
day in the City.



Economic Development Committee
December 14, 2010
Page 2

Mr. Haleblian asked how much of the hotels’ bussnefrom non-business trips. Mr. Cotten saideghgsra
lot of travel in the summer because of sports.sald there is some in the winter because of SkjHig
volleyball tournaments. They need to market thg @i bus tours. If the tour companies don't see gt
the conventions, the City gets lost.

Mr. Affrunti said the sports clubs do their own keting. Mr. Cotten said that their arrangements wi
sports teams actually cost the hotels money to ptestays for sporting events. The sports clubg tean
offer rooms at a discounted rate and they alsa de¢ from the hotel for each room they fill.

Mr. Affrunti said the EDC has always been suppertaf the MCVB to the Council. Mr. Carlson said the
City can help itself by helping the MCVB. Mr. Favlsaid we all benefit from what happens in Crystal

Lake. Ms. Hughes asked what do the hotels promdizystal Lake — the Three Oaks Recreation akda.

Cotten said everything from the Raue Center anahé¢hwerecreation area and more but they can’t afiord
market Crystal Lake.

Ms. Palmer said that hotels need to serve a waltded base of customers. The sports teams aréymost
weekend business and Crystal Lake is not a typocaist destination. She said it takes money tkema
money. Ms. Rentzsch said a few years ago theydakvey of the people who attended the Johnny
Appleseed Festival downtown and approximately 308tewwrom out of town. Ms. Palmer said she doesn’t
believe that is the case any longer unless thegtagéng with family.

In response to a question by the EDC, Mr. Carlsith ¥/oodstock pays $15,000 and McHenry pays
$12,000 to the MCVB for their memberships. Theyraguesting $15,000 from the City of Crystal Lake,
which is not more or less than what Woodstock mlesiand Crystal Lake benefits most from the MCVB.
Mr. Fowler asked, with that amount, would the C#geive a position on the board. Mr. Carlson yasl

Ms. Connelly, with Country Inn & Suites, said thee not just looking for tourism but also meetingé.
Carlson said there have been two statewide cororenbooked for Crystal Lake. Holiday Inn is théyon
facility with meeting space in the area. He adthed other hotels benefit from these meetings dk we

Mr. Haleblian asked why the Council chose not tadfthe MCVB last year. Ms. Rentzsch said the Cibunc
does contribute to the Raue Center, Downtown Clrysilee, which are members of the MCVB, and many
other projects. Mr. Richter stated that the Coumypically invests hotel tax funds in events and
organizations that fill hotel rooms. He said tftat2010-2011 FY, the City received funding reqedst
approximately $446,500 and there were only $270i0@0ojected funds available.

Mr. Dalzell asked if the City could perhaps inviesthe MCVB this year and see if there is an insesia
hotel tax funds generated in Crystal Lake afterysa. Mr. Carlson said they are currently seairsgeady
increase in hotel stays at this time. Mr. Saidtated that this should probably be a two-year ciment
since it would take time for the effect of the adigng. Mr. Haleblian believes that the new retien park
will help with the tourism in Crystal Lake.

Mr. Ross asked if the money contributed by theotgimunicipalities is put into one pool or is ipamte.
Mr. Carlson said it is in one pool of funds thatged to promote tourism throughout the Countyrtaidy,
member communities will see a greater level ofiserand more promotion from the MCVB.

Mr. Affrunti asked about their publications. Mraflson said they have a map guide that is in theeSt
visitors’ office and they are working on the fildtHenry County visitors’ guide. They concentrateaveas



Economic Development Committee
December 14, 2010
Page 3

over 50 miles away and do advertising in the Clocigbune, on WGN radio, etc. Mr. Carlson addeat th
the majority of their funding comes from the Couatd they will be decreasing their funding this augn
year. They also receive dollar-for-dollar matchgrgnts from the State.

Mr. Fowler asked what the next step is. He saay thave been down this road before. He askearéth
needs to be workshops done with the Council. Noh®r said a workshop is held by the Council fa t
applicants to make their presentation. He hasewaived confirmation of the date but will be cartm@ let
everyone know as soon as it is available. Mr. Rickaid the City Council did consider the motioada by
the EDC last year regarding the MCVB. Mr. Fowlsked if there were be an opportunity for the hatels
give their opinions. Mr. Carlson said each appilida given 10 minutes to make their presentatidhere
are usually no questions but the hotel represeetatire welcome to attend. They have receiveel $etif
support from hotels but it may be beneficial fgpressentatives to attend. Mr. Fowler said they dcpleak
to how the MCVB affects their business. Mr. Saidleggested they also speak to how the money wwaild
spent, i.e. internet ads, etc. He added that then€ll knows what the MCVB does but they need tovkn
how the money will be spent.

Mr. Fowler moved to recommend to the City Coungiiding for the McHenry County Visitors’ Bureau in
the amount of $15,000 from the Hotel Motel Tax fuds. Feddersen seconded the motion. On voias vot
all members voted aye. Motion passed.

Public Participation and Comments
None.

Staff updates
| Shop Crystal Lake

Mr. Richter said they are close to sending outRbevards cards. They are contacting the “big btor'es

for their participation. It doesn’t need to beeavnpromotion but can be something they alreadywarring.

He had sent electronic copies of the | Shop Progeaide to EDC members and asked that the members go
to five businesses and walk them through the psooksntering a Rewards coupon. Mr. Richter said h
hopes to have between 50 and 100 businesses iavofigr to mailing out cards.

Ms. Rentzsch said staff will be contacting the ¢angational stores about their participation. Blalzell
said they may want to wait until Valentine’s DayMother’s Day to roll out the program. Mr. Richsaid
they wanted to get this out soon and advertispdople to use their gift cards in Crystal Lake.

Mr. Fowler asked if the website has been edited. Rithter said yes. Mr. Haleblian asked what the
response from the big box stores has been. MdzB#nsaid they wanted the website to be up amingn
before they contacted those businesses.

Ms. Feddersen said they could hire high schoolIME@€ students to update the website. Mr. Richt&t sa
they wanted a site the business owners could naititamselves. He said that the City recognized ttie
businesses need to be educated in how to useté¢he si

Mr. Fowler suggested that EDC members visit varlousinesses in Crystal Lake to promote the Rewards
program.

Incentives



Economic Development Committee
December 14, 2010
Page 4

Mr. Richter said there has not been any chandgegtoetquests since the previous EDC meeting. Tltgy C
Council did approve re-allocating $10,000 of thea&ing funds from the existing retailer portioreovo
the new business grant fund.

Attraction

Mr. Richter said there is nothing new with attrantof businesses since the last EDC meeting twdsvee
ago. He showed the action plan, and summary ohésses that have been contacted. He stateditieat F
Below will be taking the entire former Pier Onellding. Ms. Rentzsch said they are similar to Ol/iX
and are very popular in the northeast. Mr. Dalzeitl he has been trying to contact someone frdandn
about that building for about 2 years and they haeer called him back. He called the phone nurtiizr
is on the sign.

Retention
Mr. Richter reviewed the action plan. He saidtthg of General Kinematics has been tentativelyamet
January 12 but it has not been confirmed. Mr. Eowakked that this be finalized by the end of &y

Mr. Haleblian said Walter E. Smith will be closing.

Leqislative
Ms. Rentzsch reviewed the comments made by thenga@ommission regarding the updates to the Unified

Development Ordinance (UDO). Their recommendatdhgo before City Council for approval.

2011-12 Planning

Ms. Rentzsch said the draft budget for the nextfigear is due before the end of the year. Sidetlsa City
of Crystal Lake has not laid off any of the empleyehas a very good credit rating, and is in gawahtial
standing. The budget next year will be a zero gindwidget.

Mr. Fowler said the business community loved théifaeate program we had the past few years.

Ms. Rentzsch said they have found that ICSC ppgton is the best bang for the buck for the Cityhas a
tremendous impact. Mr. Richter said there arers¢wther businesses interested in the City’s nesirtess
grants during this fiscal year. Ms. Rentzsch faidey were to be approved by the Council the nyone
would be coming from the reserve fund and they @dd looked at on a case by case basis. Mr. Richte
said when they make the presentation for the gtaetsare sure to add that the funds are limited.

Mr. Haleblian asked if the matching grant fundg i@ not utilized during a fiscal year can theydiléed
over to the next fiscal year. Mr. Richter saicttie City’s Appropriations Ordinance for the annbiadget,
by State Statute, is only valid for one year arad tands cannot be arbitrarily carried over.

Ms. Rentzsch said they have attended other orgamsashows but the ICSC shows are worth attending
Mr. Dalzell asked if staff has attended the fraselshow that is held in Chicago around Septembesait
that may be another place to go.

Mr. Fowler asked if the amount of funding for | $nGrystal Lake for next year would be $25,000. Mrs
Rentzsch said she believes so. Mr. Richter sag ¢hn start to review at next month’s meeting the
advertising budget. Mr. Fowler said they coulda& request more money from Council if they find
something exciting. Mr. Richter said the grantgseams are the single most important tool they have.



Economic Development Committee
December 14, 2010
Page 5

Fowler said the big businesses don’t care abougittiet money. Ms. Rentzsch disagreed and stagsgddit
in fact care about that money. That puts them thetop to come to Crystal Lake.

Mr. Ross suggested a tiered program with a cap®080 or $20,000 and goes down. He said thaCitye
could choose not to pay out the grant immediatatyait 6 months and base the amount on business
performance. In the mean time that money couldguien an escrow account and draw interest unisl it
paid out. It was suggested that there also bpaat small business fund.

Organization Reports

Downtown Crystal Lake (Brian Fowler)

Ms. Rentzsch said the holiday event held the ptesvevening was well attended. Mr. Fowler said the
downtown area is busy. Mr. Affrunti said the netwestaurant downtown seems to be very busy. Mr.
Richter said there is a sports bar owner interastélae former Carl’s Furniture store. They havgtb
through the process for a Special Use Permit, pgrkariations, liquor license, etc. before they cpan.

Mr. Harms said the downtown businesses have doee@ptional job on their windows this year.

Committee for Business Support (Terry Feddersen)

Ms. Feddersen said that at the last CBS meeting thias a presentation from Crystal Lake South High
School regarding the work program. She said tbgnam is voluntary for the students and they ate no
problem kids. They try to match the students’nesés with the business.

McHenry County Economic Development CorporationgBrowler)
Mr. Fowler said he and Mr. Richter will be attenglism meeting regarding grants for manufacturing
businesses tomorrow.

Comments from the Committee
Mr. Richter said they will be hosting a webinadgi.m. today from the ICSC.

Mr. Fowler asked what the potential EDC membersleddo do. Mr. Richter asked that they send atshor
resume and letter of interest. There are four mgson the Committee. He said they would like to
consider the possible appointees at the next ngeitenend of January so if the resume and lettgiddoe
received by January 10 it would be appreciated.

Mr. Haleblian thanked those who attended the mgetin

Adjourn
There being no further business, the meeting wasiated at 9:15 a.m.



